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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Commissioners
City of Elk City, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of centents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City
cof Elk City, Oklahoma’s, management. QOur responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standard applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our cpinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairxrly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Elk City, O©Oklahoema, as of June 30, 2011, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof,
for the year then ended in ceonformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated October 18, 2011, on our consideration of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, requlations, contracts, and grants. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in acceordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in conjunction with this report in considering the
results of our audit.

The CPA. Never Underesiimate The Value.®

P.O. Box 785 » Elk City. O 73648 » Ph: 580.225.0292 » Fax 380.225.0304
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on
pages 3 through 10 and 17 through 18 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inguiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s basic
financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying acccunting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relaticn to the
financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
it.

Foniler & ?ﬁﬁﬁmy, PC.

Elk City, Oklahoma
October 18, 2011

The CPA. Never Underestimate The Vame(.g
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA
JUNE 30, 2011

Within this section, the City of Elk City's (“City") management provides narrative discussion and analysis
of the financial performance of the City’s for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The City's performance
is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial statements and disclosures
following this section. This discussion focuses on the City's primary government, and unless otherwise
noted, component units reported separately from the primary government are not included. Please read it
in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

= At June 30, 2011, the assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $80,374,510 (net assets). Of
this amount $19,831,331 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City's ongoing
obligations fo citizens and creditors. This compared to the previous year when assets exceeded
liabilities by $56,408,250, before change in reporting of the Industrial Authority of $16,518,256.

= The City’s fotal net assets are comprised of the following:

(1) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $58,810,748 include property and
equipment, net of accumulated depreciafion, and reduced for outstanding debt
related to the purchase of construction of capital assets.

(2) Restricted net assets of $1,732,431,

{3) Unrestricted net assets of $19,831,331 represent the portion available to maintain the
City's continuing obligations to citizens and creditors.

« Total liabilities of the City increased by $1,296,251 during the fiscal year. The increase is
attributable to draws on business-type activities debt offset by payments made during the year.

¢ After fransfers of $9,249,091 o business-type activities from governmental activities, net assets
of governmental activities decreased $987,455 or 2%, and net assets of business-type activities
Increased $8,380,207 or 32%. Overall the health of the City improved when compared to prior
year.

= At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was
$3,880,520 or 51% of total General Fund expenditures, excluding transfers.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the City’s basic financial statements. The basic
financial statements include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and
(3) notes to the financial statements. The City also includes in this report additional information to
supplement the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The City's annual reporting includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements
provide both long-term and short-term information about the City's overall status and are presented to
demonstrate the extent the City has met its operating objective efficiently and effectively using all the
resourced available and whether the City can continue to meet it objectives in the foreseeable future.
Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis
in full accrual accounting and elimination or reclassification of internal activities.

The first of these government-wide statements is the Stafement of Net Assets. This is the City-wide
statement of financial position presenting information that includes all of the City's asseis and liabilities,
with the difference reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in nel assels may seive as
a useful indication of whether the financial position of the City as a whole is improving or deteriorating.
Evaluation of the overall economic health of the City would extend to other financial factors such as
diversification of the taxpayer base or the condition of the City infrastructure in addition to the financial
information provided in this report.

The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the City’s net
assets changed during the current fiscal year and can be used to assess the City's operating results in its
entirety and analyze how the City's programs are financed. All current year revenues and expenses are
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included regardless of when cash is received or paid. An important purpose of the design of the
statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the City's distinct activities or functions on
revenues provided by the City's taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial staterments distinctively report governmental activities of the City that are
principally supporied by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, such as grants, and business-type
activities that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges. Governmental activities includes general government; public safety and judiciary;
transportation; and cultural, parks, and recreation. Business-iypes activities include utility services,
including electricity, water, and sanitation, provided by the City.

The City’s financial reporting entity includes the funds of the City (primary government) and organization
for which the City is accountable (component units). More comprehensive information about the City's
component units can be found in footnotes.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities
or objectives. The City uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and
regulations. Within the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the City's most
significant funds rather than the City as a whole.

The City has three kinds of funds:

Governmential funds are reported in the fund financial staterments and encompass essentially the same
functions reporied as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the
focus is different with fund statements reporting short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of
spendable resources during the year and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the
commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two
perspectives may provide insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to the government-wide statements fo assist in
understanding the differences between these two perspectives.

Budgetary comparison statement is included in the basic financial statement for governmental funds
deemed as major. This statement demonstrates compliance with the City’s adopted and final revised
budget.

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the
City charges customers a fee. The City has one type of proprietary fund, enterprise funds. Enterprise
funds essentially encompass the same functions repaorted as business-type activities in the government-
wide statements. Services are provided to customers external to the City crganization such as water,
sanitation, and electric utilities.

Proprietary fund statements and statements for discretely presented component units (reporting similarly
to proprietary funds) provide both long-term and short-term financial information consistent with the focus
provided by the government-wide financial statements but with more detail.

Fiduciary funds such as the meter deposits and police bonds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial
statements, but are excluded from the government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements
report resources that are not available to fund City programs. Fiduciary fund financial statements report
similarly to proprietary funds.
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CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA

Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding
of the government-wide and fund financial statements. Those notes to the financial statement begin
immediately following the basic financial statements.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying noted, this report presents certain
required supplementary information detailing the combining statements of non-majer governmental funds.
A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The City's combined net assets at June 30, 2011 are $80,374,510. This is a $7,448,004 increase over
June 30, 2010 net assets of $72,926,506, including change in presentation. The City reported posited
balances in total net assets for both governmental and business-type activities, reporting $45,954,211
and $34,420,299, respectively. The City’s overall financial position improved during fiscal year 2011.

Summary of Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
$ %
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 Change Change
Current assets $ 12,915256 $ 13,173,668 $ 12,640,247 $ 11,636,110 $ 25555503 $ 24,809,778 3 745,725 3%
Non-current assets - - 1,990,678 - 1,990,678 - 1,990,678 100%
Capital assets, net 34,911,718 35,899,608 44,326,010 37,330,268 79,237,729 73,229,877 6,007,852 8%
Total assets 47,826,975 49,073,277 58,956,935 48,966,378 106,783,910 98,039,655 8,744,255 9%
Current liabilities 588,703 046,131 2,605,383 046,706 3,284,086 1,892,837 1,391,249 74%
Non-current liabilities 1,284,061 1,240,732 21,841,233 21,979,580 23125314 23,220,312 (94,998) 0%
Total liabilities 1,872,764 2,186,863 24,536,636 22,926,286 26,409,400 25,113,149 1,296,251 5%
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 34,911,718 35,899,609 23,899,029 22,005,508 58,810,748 57,905,117 905,631 2%
Restricted 1,732,431 3,673,168 - - 1,732,431 3,673,166 (1,240,735) -53%
Unrestricted 9,310,051 7,313,639 10,521,270 4,034,584 19,831,331 11,348,223 8,483,108 75%
Total net assets $ 45,954,211 § 46,886,414 $ 34,420,289 § 26,040,092 $ 80,374,590 $ 72,926,506 $ 7,448,004 10%

Net assets increased 10% over prior year. This increase is attributable to purchases of capital assets and

liquid assets offset by an increase in draws on long-term liabilities.
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CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA

Revenues

Program revenues

Taxes and other general
revenues

Total revenues

Expenses

General government

Public safety and judiciary

Transportation

Cultural, parks, and recreation

Public service

Economic development

Utilities

Airport

Customer service

Industral development
Total expenses

Excess (deficiency) before
transfers

Transfers

Increase (decrease)
in net assets

Summary of Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-fype
Activities Activities Total
$ %
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 Change Change
$ 4144021 § 2367397 % 6952290 $ 6,083,996 $ 11,096,311 $ 8,451,393 § 2644918 31%
13,890,297 10,583,867 43,497 4,468,304 13,933,794 15,052,171 (1,118,377) 7%
18,034,318 12,951,264 6,995,787 10,552,300 25,030,105 23,503,564 1,526,541 24%
427,388 391,081 - - 427,388 391,081 36,307 9%
5,330,857 5,057,320 - - 5,330,857 5,057,320 273,537 5%
100,912 - - - 100,912 - 100,912 100%
1,785,431 1,792,863 - - 1,785,431 1,792,863 (7,432) 0%
1,442,468 1,106,320 - - 1,442,468 1,106,320 336,148 30%
685,628 658,916 - - 685,626 658,916 26,710 4%
- - 2,330,091 3,888,271 2,330,091 3,888,271 (1,558,180) -40%
- - 313,837 180,957 313,637 180,957 132,680 73%
- - 1,698,737 10,867 1,698,737 10,867 1,687,870 15532%
- - 3,522,206 3,190,364 3,522,206 3,190,364 331,842 10%
9,772,682 9,006,500 7.864,671 7.270,459 17,637,353 16,276,959 1,360,394 8%
$ 8261636 § 3044764 § (B68884) $ 3281841 $ 7392752 § 7226605 3% 166,147 2%
(9,249,091} 289,213 9,248,001 (299,213) - - - 0%
$ (987,455) § 4243977 S$ B,380207 § 2982628 § 7,392,752 § 7,226605 $§ 166,147 2%

Certain reclassifications have been made from prior year balances o conform to current year presentation.

Revenues for the City increased 24% year over year.

This increase in revenues is attributable fo

increase in utility usage from citizens, increase in general tax revenues, offset by a decrease in
intergovernmental revenues.

Operating expenses also noted a modest increase over fiscal year 2010 of 8%.

This increase is a

function of the repairs and improvements made to the City infrastructure during the fiscal year coupled
with increase in personnel in fuel costs,
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Graphic presentations of selected date from the summary table follow to assist in the analysis of the City’s
activities.

public service_ 2011 Revenues

Cultural, parks and Economic

recreation
2%

Transportation
2%

Public safety

and judiciary

General
gavernment
2% Interest &
Royalities
1%

Taxes provided 76% of the City’s governmental revenues in fiscal year 2011. Economic development
provided 10% of governmental revenues for the year.

General
government
4%

Economic 2011 Expenses

development
7% \

Transportation
1%

For the year ended June 30, 2011, total expenses for governmental activities were $9,772,682. Of this
amount, public safety and judiciary with $5,330,857, was the largest operating service department at 55%
of the total cost of services for the City government. These costs, as well as all other governmental
activity expenses, were primarily funded by tax revenues. It should be noted that governmental expenses
are adjusted from the fund statements to the government-wide statements for the purchase and
construction of capital assets. Government-wide statement is full accrual; capital outlay expenses are
eliminated and capital assets are reported.
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Business-type Activities

FY11 Business-type Activities

4 |

Industrial
Airport
Customer service
Lt Revenues
Sanitation & Expenses

Sewer

Water

P -

- $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000

Business-type activities are shown comparing costs to revenues generated by the related services.
Sanitation, Sewer, and Water activities are intended to be self-supporting with user charges and other
revenues designed to recover costs. Other activities provide services with minimal user charges.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, revenues from water, sewer, and sanitation services covered the
cost of operating their respective departments.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original adopted General Fund budget for fiscal year 2011 was $8,039,355. This was a decrease of
$4,811,166 over the previous year's budget. Total expenditures for the City were $7,655,915, which is
$383,440 less than the approved budget. Total General Fund expenditures were less than approved
budgeted amounts, however certain departments exceeded budgeted expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2011, the City had $58,810,748 invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
including vehicles and equipment for police and fire operations, street improvements, and park facilities,
in governmental activities and utility improvements/infrastructure in business-type activities. Refer to the
table below.
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CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA

Primary Government Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

{in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activittes Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land $ 3163 § 3,184 § 440 & 270 % 3603 % 3,464
Buildings 15,906 15,169 34,169 34,169 50,075 49,368
Machinery & equipment 16,784 16,743 2,111 1,847 18,895 18,580
Utility property & improvements 29,803 29,756 20,267 12,573 50,070 42,329
Total cost $ 65656 % 64,802 § 56,987 $ 48859 § 122643 $ 113,751
Accumulated depreciation 30,744 28,992 12,661 11,541 43,405 40,533
Total capital assets, net 3 34,912 § 35900 $ 44,326 § 37,318 3 79,238 % 73,218

The most significant additions to the City's capital assets included continued development of the industrial
park, completicn of City Hall, street and paving improvements, waterline engineering and construction,

and nine 2010 police cars.

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the City had $21,263,479 in long-term debt outstanding. The City’s changes in long-term

debt by type of debt are as follows:

Primary Government Long-Term Debt

Business-type

Activities
2011 2010
Notes payable 22,746,555 21,058,536
less current portion (1,483,076) (1,204,981)
Total long term debt 21,283,479 19,853,555

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS'S BUDGET AND RATES

Economic Environment

The national economic recession resulted in economic concerns and issues for the City. Overall tax
revenues remained steady in fiscal year 2011. However, there were a significant number of capital
projects undertaken by the municipality that impacted cash flow. Because the City has effective
processes in place to deal with the economic declines and the planning for capital improvements, the
impact on the City has not been as detrimental as it has in other cities and other part of the country.

Improvement in the economic position is cautiously projected.

i Year 2012 Planni

The City of Elk City has approved a budget for the municipal entity that is based upon the need to
maintain current levels of service to citizens. The Commission undertook three main cbjectives as part of

the outlook for the City, historic and systemic wage and compensation issues, an aggressive capital

improvements program, a steady process to create an actual City “Reserve Fund”, the establishment of a
conservative balance within each operating fund in preparation for economic slowdowns. To meet these

goals, an 8% salary increase was included, adjustments to the funding of the retirement plan, re-direction
of sales tax, and deliberate effort to control operating costs combined with the exploration of new revenue

sources.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA
JUNE 30, 2011

A utility rate study is planned for fiscal year 2012 to ensure that the cost of providing services is covered
by the charges generated by use.

Capital improvements of $6.7 million, funded with sales tax, are approved for fiscal year 2012,

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general
overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City Clerk's Office at Elk
City City Hall, 320 West 3" St, Elk City, Oklahoma.

10



City of Elk City, Oklahoma

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011
Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Total
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,495,834 7,817,357 11,113,191
Investments 1,834,000 1,507,000 3,341,000
Due from other gavernments 72,660 1,761 74421
Accounts recejvable (net) 145,454 1,047,542 1,196,996
Note receivable, current - 328,896 328,896
inventory 13,436 1,123,112 1,136,548
Due fram other funds (14,227) 14,227 -
Tetal current assets 5,551,157 11,639,895 17,191,052
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,012,092 1,000,352 5,012,451
Investments 2,352,000 - 2,352,000
Total restricted assets 7,364,099 1,000,352 8,364,451
Noncurrent Assets:
Note receivable - 1,990,678 1,980,678
Land and construction in progress 3,163,050 440,000 3,603,050
Other capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 31,748,669 43,886,010 75,634,679
Total noncurrent assets 34,911,719 46,316,688 81,228,407
Total assets 5 47,826,975 58,956,835 106,783,910
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 282,170 744,227 1,025,397
Payroll liabilities - 40,660 40,660
Compensated absences 306,533 74,890 381,423
Defemed income - 266,667 266,667
Other fiabilities - 14,125 14,125
Accrued payables - 71,738 71,738
Notes payable, current - 1,483,076 1,483,076
Total current liabilities 588,703 2,695,383 3,284,086
Noncurrent lizbilities:
Other accrued liabilities 1,284,061 577,774 1,861,835
Notes payable, non-current - 21,263,479 21,263,479
Total noncument liabilities 1,284,081 21,841,253 23,125,314
Total liahilities 1,872,764 24,536,636 26,408,400
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 34,911,719 23,899,029 58,810,748
Reserved for restricted purposes 1,732,431 - 1,732.431
Unrestricted 9,210,081 10,621,270 19,831,331
Total net assets 3 45,954,211 34,420,299 80,374,510
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 11



City of Elk City, Oklahoma
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants & (Expense)f
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Govemnmental activities:
General govemment S 427388 § 114,710 5 151,323 5 15,911 $ (145,444)
Public safety and judiciary 5,330,857 1,213,761 - 33,660 (4,083,436)
Transportation 100,912 - 96,260 330,416 325,764
Cultural, parks and recreation 1,785,431 248,301 12,132 4,600 (1,520,398)
Public service 1,442 468 46,307 - B (1,396,161)
Economic development 685,626 - 489,300 1,387,340 1,191,014
Total governmental activities 9,772,682 1,623,079 749,015 1,771,927 (5,628,661)
Business-type aclivities:

Water 1,010,817 1,547,868 - - 537,051

Sewer 372,116 623,267 - - 251,151

Sanitation 947,158 1,414,535 - - 487,377
Customner service 1,608,737 378,629 - - (1.320,108)
Airport 313,637 265,882 - - (47,755)
Industrial 3,622,206 2,722,109 - - {800,087)
Total business-type activities 7,864,671 6,952,280 - - (912,381)
Total primary government $ 17,637,353 3 8,575,369 $ 749,015 $ 1,771,927 $  (6.541,042)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 12



City of EIk City, Oklahoma

Statement of Activities (continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Changes in Net Assets:

Net {expense)revenue
General revenues:
Taxes:
Sales tax
Use tax
Franchise tax
Other taxes
Oil and gas royalities
Investment income
Gain/{loss) on sale of assets
Transfers-Internal activity
Other
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets
Net assets-beginning
Prior period adjustment

Net assets-ending

See accompanying noles to the financial statements

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

$ (5,628,661) 3 (912,381} 3 (6,541,042)
11,700,935 - 11,700,935
954,716 - 954,716

529,446 - 529,446
230,864 - 230,864

189,752 - 188,752

160,294 77,101 227,395

57,420 (59,104) {1,684)
{9,249,091) 9,249,091 -
76,870 25,500 102,370
4,641,208 9,282,588 13,833,794
(987,455) 8,380,207 7,392,752
46,886,414 26,040,092 72,926,506
55,252 - 58,252

$ 45954211 $ 34,420,299 $ 80,374,510
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City of Elk City, Oklahoma
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011
Total
General Debt Capital Economic Non-Major Governmental
Fund Service Projects Development Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,587,460 % 1,103,461 $ 2,241,489 5 724,935 $ 1,850,588 $ B,507.933
Investments 1,671,000 - - 2,000,000 515,000 4,786,000
Due from other governments 30,511 42149 72,660
Accounts recelvable 148,454 - - - - 149,454
Inventory - - - - 13,436 13,436
Total assets $ 4,438.425 $ 1,103,461 $ 2,241,489 5 2724935 $ 2421173 § 12,929,483
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2357145 § - $ - § - $ 45025 § 282,170
Due to ather funds 14,227 - - - - 14,227
Compensated absences 306,533 - - - - 306,533
Total liabilities 557,905 - - - 45,025 602,930
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - - 13,436 13,436
Restricted - 1,103,461 - - 628,970 1,732,431
Committed - - 2,241,489 - 793,398 3,034,887
Assigned - - - 2,724,935 873,867 3,588,802
Unassigned 3,880,520 - - - 66.477 3,946,997
Total fund balances 3,880,520 1,103,461 2,241,489 2,724,935 2,376,148 12,326,553
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 4438425 § 1,103,461 $ 2.241,489 § 2724935 $ 2421173 § 12929483
Total fund balance- total governmental funds $ 12,326,553
Amounts reparted for governmental activities in the Statement of Net assets are different because:
Land and capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, are not finanical resources and, in the funds, and therefore, are not reported
Land and construction in process 3,163,050
Capital assets 62,492,401
Less: Accumulated depreciation (30,743,732}
34,911,719
Long-term pertion of liabilities are net due and payable in the curmrent period and are not reported ' (1.284,061)
Net assets of governmental activities 3 45954.211

See panying notes 1o the financial statements
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City of Elk City, Oklahoma

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011
Tota)
General Debt Capital Economic Non-Major Governmental
Fund Service Projects Development Funds Funds
REVENUES
Sales tax s 6,579,776 s - 3 5,121,159 $ - ) . 1) 11,700,935
Use tax 954,716 . - - - 954,716
Franchise tax 529446 - - - - 529,446
Oihertaxes 164,698 [ - - - 164,704
Licenses and permils 45,152 - - - - 45,153
Rents & royalitles 52,189 140,923 - - 4,530 237642
Fines and forfeitures 476,008 - - - 5,229 481.237
Charges for services 435353 - - - 462,205 897,558
Inlergovernmental ravenues 120331 - 1,367,340 - 580,131 2,097 802
Doenations - - - - 42 656 42 656
Othar revenues 75470 . 244,889 86,067 722202 1,128,738
Inlerest 81,034 951 7.043 37,173 24,042 150,294
Total revenues 9,544,224 141.880 8.760.441 123.240 1.851.096 18.420.881
EXPENDITURES
General govemnment:
Managerial 455,088 - - - - 455,099
City clerk 708,486 . - - - 709,486
City freasurer 52,516 - - - - 92,516
City atiormey 38547 - - - - 38,547
General government 280,779 - B0 - 172,486 433,345
Total general gavemment 1,566,427 - BO - 172,486 1,728,893
Puble safety and Judiciary:
Police 2,066,314 . - - 32,692 2,099,006
Municipal court 7aB2z . - - - 73.822
Animal control 170,248 - - - - 170,248
Fire 1,061,160 - - - 20090 1.081.250
Ambulance 182,299 - - - 538,719 721.018
Total public safety and judiciary 3.553,843 - - - 591,501 4,145,344
Transpanation:
Street - - - - 83,426 83,425
Total transpontation - - - - 83,426 83426
Cuitural, parks and recreation:
Museum 386,276 - - - 86,317 422,503
Library 155,078 . - - 10,132 165,210
Civie center 87,379 - - - - 87,379
Park 250,885 - - - - 280,885
Swimming poel 82,522 - - - - B2,522
Total cultural, parks and recrealion 982,140 - - B 66,443 1,048,539
Public service:
Cemelery 132,632 . - - - 132,632
Inspeciion 146,379 - - - - 146,379
Landfil! - - - - 7074 7.074
Tolal public service 272,011 - - - 7.074 2B6,085
Economic development;
Holelimotel 1ax - - - 36 375,000 376,036
Telal economic develapment - - - 35 375.000 375.035
Capilal outlay 1.284.494 - - 118,945 57,114 1,460,553
Total expenditures 7,655,915 - 80 118,981 1,353,050 9,128,025
Excess (deficiency) af revenues over
expenditures 1,888,309 141,880 6,760,361 4,259 498,045 9,292,855
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES
Transfers in B3g,182 - - 222553 229,490 1,291,225
Transfers oul (2,926,234 - (7.230457) - (384,625) {10,540.316)
Total other financing sources and uses (2,086,052} - {7,2530.457) 222 553 (155,135) 19,245,091}
Net ¢hange in fund balances (197,743} 141,850 {470,096) 226,812 342,911 43,764
Fund balances - beglnning 4,078,263 961,581 2,711,585 2488123 2022237 12,282,728
Fund balances - ending 3 3.880.520 $ 1,103,461 £} 2,241,489 $ 2724935 $ 2.276.148 $ 12.326.553
See accompanying notes ta the financial statements 15



City of Elk City, Oklahoma
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

Reconciliation of the change in fund balances - total governmental funds
to the change in net assets of governmental activities:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

$ 43,764

Governmentai funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital asset purchases capitalized 1,460,553

Depreciation expense (2,061,880) (601,327)

In the statement of activiteis, the loss on the disposal of assets is reported,
whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale increase
financial resources. The change in net assets differs from the change in

fund balance by the cost of the assets disposed, net of related
accumulated depreciation.

Sale of assets - governmental funds 443,983
Loss of disposal of assets - government-wide (57.420) (386,563)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. This includes the net increase in the liability

related to closure and post closure cost of the City’s solid waste landfill (43,329)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (987.455)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 16



City of Elk City Oklahcma
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES

Sales tax

Franchise Tax

Other tax and licenses

Airport fuel sales

License, Fees & Permits

Museum

Police Fines & Court Fees

Qil & Gas Royalty

Rentals

Interest Income

Ambulance Revenue

Grants

Miscellaneous Sales and Service
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government:
Managerial:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
Capital Qutlay
General Government;
Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
City Clerk:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
Capital Outlay
City Treasurer:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Qperation
Capital OQutlay
City Attorney:
Personal Service
Mairtenance & Qperation
Maintenance:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
Reserve Account:
Capital Outlay
Total General government;

Pubic safety and judiciary;
Municipal Court:

Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
Capital Outlay

Palice Department:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
Capital Cutlay

Fire Department:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Operation
Capital Gutlay

Animal Control:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Qperaticn
Capital Outlay

Ambulance:
Personal Service
Maintenance & Qperation
Capital Outlay

Total Pubic safety and judiciary:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Variance -
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 3,066,921 3,654,542 $ 587,621
462,860 529,446 66,586
964,943 1,185,674 220,631
297,000 - (297,000}
426,746 162,734 (264,012}
160,670 63,148 (97,522}
393,812 454,243 650,431
- 48,829 48,829
35,000 33,360 (1,640}
- 81,084 81,084
590,140 276,489 (313,651}
164,738 54,171 (110,567}
24,417 75,370 50,953
6,587,247 6,618,980 31,743
308,593 275,824 32,769
69,500 179,275 (109,775)
64,664 (64,664)
64,739 78,238 {(13,499)
- 904 (904)
204,314 76,687 217,627
304,500 632,799 (328,299}
40,000 39,953 47
87,743 87 446 297
5,000 5,070 (70}
2,500 2,978 {478)
41,569 38,238 3,331
750 309 441
- 49,493 {49,493)
- 8,712 (8,712)
765,126 739,110 26,016
1,984,334 2,279,700 {295,366)
70,473 72,524 (2,051)
2,750 1,208 1,452
1,000 - 1,000
1,553,104 1,789,436 (236,332)
193,205 276,878 (83,673)
160,000 285,748 (125,748)
964,886 924,211 40,675
85,573 136,949 (51,376)
37,000 43,271 (6,271)
103,471 117,555 {14,084)
49,583 52,693 {3,110)
25,500 - 25,500
703,570 156,410 547,160
136,700 25,889 110,811
9,000 - 9,000
4,095,815 3,882,862 212,953
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City of Elk City Oklahoma
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis)
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance -
Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Culture and recreation:
Park:
Personal Service 182,671 210,652 (27,981)
Maintenance & Operation 108,952 80,233 28719
Capital Outlay 45,500 85,502 {40,402)
Library:
Personal Service 138,966 124,120 14,846
Maintenance & Operation 55,585 30,958 24,637
Capital Outlay 35,000 12,068 22,932
Swimming Pool:
Personal Service 78,846 67,903 10,943
Maintenance & Operation 16,750 14,618 1,131
Capital OQutlay 5,500 - 5,500
Museurmn:
Persanal Service 285,045 249,203 35,842
Maintenance & Operation 29,434 117,073 (87,639}
Capital Outlay 80,000 7,500 72,500
Civic Center:
Maintenance & Operation 67,106 87,379 {20,273)
Capital Outlay 30,000 3,300 26,700
Total Culture and recreation: 1,158,365 1,080,910 67,455
Public services
[nspection:
Personal Service 92,010 101,321 (8,311)
Maintenance & Operation 18,611 45,058 (26,447)
Capital Outlay 750 - 750
Airport:
Personal Service 68,959 - 68,959
Maintenance & Operation 308,000 - 308,000
Capital Outlay 7,000 - 7,000
Cemetery:
Personal Service 114,013 109,156 4,857
Maintenance & Operation 21,405 23,476 {2,071)
Capital Outlay 32,500 - 32,500
Youth and Family:
Personal Service 82,342 88,798 (6,456)
Mainteriance & Operation 51,751 34,634 17,117
Capital Outlay 3,500 - 3,500
Total Public services 800,841 402,443 398,398
Total expenditures 8,039,355 7,655,915 383,440
Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,452,108) {1,036,925) (351,697)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers inf{ocut) 567,154 839,182 272,028
Net cther financing sources (uses) 567,154 839,182 272,028
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other uses (884,954) (197,743) (79,669)
Fund balance at beginning of year (Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 4,078,263 4,078,263
Fund balance at end of year {Non-GAAP budgetary basis) 3 3,880,520 $ 3,998,594

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 18



City of Elk City, Oklahoma
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Currert assets:
Cash and cash equivalerts
Imvestments
Due from ather funds
Grher recevables
Accaunts receivable, net
Note receivable, current
Imventary
Total current assets
Cuarent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash, indudling time deposits
Total restricted assets
Noncurent 2ssets:
Note receivable
Capital agsels {net)
Total noncurrert assets

Total assets

LIABIUTIES
Current liatlities:
Ateauris payable
Payrol liablliies
Due to other funds.
Other kabities
Accrued interest payable
Notes payable, curent
Total current liabikties
Noncurrert liabilities:
Deferred income
Notes payable, netecurrent
Total noncurrent liabiliies

Total lahilities

NET ASSETS
Imvestedin capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Tatal net assets

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Public Tatal
Utirity Alrport Industrial Elk City Elk City Enterprise
Authority Autharity Authority Efectric Online Funds.
2708193 412,543 4796515 - 7,617,357
702,900 5,000 800,000 - 4,507,000
21628 - - - 21629
1761 - . - 1761
353,392 10,377 683,244 529 4,047,542
- - 183715 - 193,715
356,413 45,195 681,499 - 1,123,112
4,183,393 7321 7,155,072 529 15,512,415
- - 1.000,352 - 1,000,352
- - 1,000,352 - 1,000,352
- - 2,125,859 - 2,125,859
16,038,287 448,078 27,776,591 13.00 44,326,010
16.038,287 438,078 29,902,450 13.054 45,455,869
20,221,680 671,198 38.057,875 13,582 34,564,307
342,502 2,75 388,972 - 744,227
107,246 6,268 2,036 . 116,550
- 415 6,987 - 7.402
- 14,125 266,567 - 280,792
71,738 - - - 7T
241,584 - 1.241,492 - 1,483,076
763,070 23.561 1.915,184 - 2,702,785
- - 577,774 - 577,774
5.457,396 - 14.805.082 - 21,263,479
6,457,396 - 15,383,857 - 21.841.253
7.220.458 22.561 17.300,011 - 24,544,038
9,339,307 498,078 14,048,500 13,054 23,595,028
3,661,907 148.560 6,709,274 528 10.521.270
13,001,214 B47 633 20,757,864 13,582 H.420.299
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City of Elk City, Oklahoma

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Operating Tevenues:
Charges for services:

Water charges
Sewer charges
Saritation charges
Sale of fuel and rock
Penalties
Total charges for services
Lease and rental income
Other fees and charges
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Cast of sales

Personal services

Materials ard supplies

Other services and charges

Depreciation and amortization
Taotal operating expenses

Net operating income

Nonoperating revenue (expense}:

Investment income
Interest expense
Gain/(loss) on sale of assals
Tolal nonoperaling revenua
(expense)
Net Income before contributions and transfers

Transfers frem other funds
Transfers to other funds

Change in net assets
Net assets-beginning of year

Net assets-end of year

See accompanying notes o the financial statements

Public Total
Utility Airport Industrial Elk City Elk City Enterprise
Authority Authority Authority Electric Cnline Funds
5 1,594,113 8 - $ - $ - S - 5 1,594,113
623,267 - - - - 623,267
1,414,535 - - . . 1,414,535
- 227,141 2,399,320 - - 2,626,461
54,104 - . - - 54,104
3,686,019 227,141 2,390,320 . = 5,312,480
26,457 38,524 316,667 - - 361,658
277,281 217 6,122 3z - 283,652
3,080,767 65,862 2702008 32_ - XA
- 193,872 1,708,918 - - 1,802,780
1,721,034 72815 85,690 . - 1,880,538
1,280,820 23,927 136,847 47 - 1,451,444
294,539 12,037 - - - 06,576
526,392 10,886 §29.233 - 5,978 1,372,590
L:XER 315,637 2.761.498_ 47 5073 513,
157,982 (47,755) (39,379) (5} (68.979) 63,854
32,463 1,934 40,696 2,008 - 77,101
{190,017) . (760,718) - - (950,735)
36,249 - (94.194) - (1.15%) {59,104)
(121.305) 1.934 (814,216) 2,008 (1,158) (932,738)
36,677 (45,821) (853,595) 1,883 (8.138) (668,884)
6,692,339 . 2,925,234 - - 9,617,673
{2.559) (811) {50,000} {299,642} {15.500) (368.482)
6,726,457 (46,632) 2021639 {297,649} (23,638) 8,380,207
6.274.757 694,270 18,736,225 207,619 37.221 26,040,092
$ 13,001,214 § 647,638 520757884 5 - H 13,583 534,420,299
20



City of Elk City, Oklahoma
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating actlvities:
Recelpts from customers
Payments o suppliers
Paymenis to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating actlvities

Cash flows from non-capltal financing activities:
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided {used) by nen-capital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and ralated financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets
Sale of capital assets
Issuance of capital debi
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capial deti
Net cash provided {used) by capital and
related finanelng activities

Cash flows from Investing actlvitles:
[nvestment income
Net cash provided {used) by investing activities

Netincrease (decrease) in cash and ¢ash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents, Juna 30, 2010
Cash & cash equivalents, Juna 30, 2011

Cash, including time deposits
Reslricted £ash, including lime deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Recanciliation of operating Income [loss) to net cash
pravided [used) by operating activities
Operating income (1058}
Adj ks Lo reconcile of income {loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities;
DCepréciation
Changes in assets and liabilties:
{ } decrease in T
decrease in i ¥
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable
Increase {decrease) in other liabilites
Total adjustments
Net cash provided {used) by operating actlvities

See pocompanying hotes to the fnancial statemants.

Public Total
Utility Alrport Industrial ElK City EIK City Enterprise

Authority Authanty Authority Electric Online Funds
$ 3,887,319 5 263,982 § 2,043,803 $ 3z 5 11147 5 B.206.283
(1,661,669} (236,977) (1,643,792) 47 - (3,542,485)
(1.733,838 {72.815) {86,690) - - 1,853,143
452,012 {45,810) 313,321 [§E] 11.147 770655
6,666,390 - 2925204 - - 9,591,624
- (386) (50,000) (288,612) (15,500) (365,508)
€,666,390 (396) 2875234 {299.613) (15,500) 0.226.116
(8,372,239) (51.267) (107,932) - - (8,532,038)
70,249 - 30,000 - 4,352 104,602
2,893,001 - - - - 2,893,007
(8.250) - (895,0684) - - (1,004,314)
(190,017) - (766,987) - - (957,004)
(5,605.256) (&1.867), [1.842.583) - 4353 [7.455.753)
32463 1,924 40886 2,008 - KAL)
32463 1.934 40586 2,008 - 77.101
1,585,609 (96,139) 1,286,268 {257,648) - 2578118
1,122,584 208,688 4.41069% 297,619 - 6,039,550
$ 2708193 § 112548 5 5796967 § - $ - § 8.617.708
$ 2,708,193 § 112549 5 4796615 & - $ - § 7817357
- - 1,000,352 - - 1.000.352

¥ JI0B105 3 2549 NE[R 3 - 3 - 617,
$ 157982 § @7.755) § (39379) § s s (6979) § 63854
525,392 10,986 829,233 - B.979 1,372,580
{102,448) (4.500) {411.639) - 11,147 {504,840)
(76,310) {356) (12.883) - - (89,548)
(12,604) (6,785) {266.667) - - (285,056)
- - 214,656 - - 214,656
334,030 4,945 352,700 - 18,128 708,803
$ 482012 [ (45,87 D! 5 313,327 5 (16 8§ 11,147 5 770,655
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City of Elk City, Oklahoma
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
June 30, 2011

District 2 Total
Drug Task Force Agency Fiduciary
Trust Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 364,917 % 93,412 $ 458,329
Investments 3,725,373 96,000 3,821,373
Due from other governments - 2,560 2,560
Propery, plant and equipment, net 15,385 - 15,385
Total assets $ 4,105675 § 191,972 $ 4,297,647
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 11,535 $ - 3 11,535
Bonds and deposits subject to refund - 191,972 191,972
Due to other funds 1,761 - 1,761
Total liabilities 13,296 191,972 205,268
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST

District 2 drug task force funds 4,092,379 - 4,092 379
Net assets held in trust 3 4,092,379 [ - $ 4,092,379

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 22



City of Elk City, Oklahoma

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2011

ADDITIONS
Forfeitures
Other Income
Interest
Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Personal Services
Supplies and Repairs
Depreciation
Total deductions

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR DISTRICT 2 DRUG TASK FORCE

District 2
Drug Task Force
Trust Funds

$ 203,622
4,458
59,044

267,124

372,327
113,014
15,767

501,108

Beginning of year
End of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 23
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CITy OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

(1} SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices of the City of Elk City,
Oklahoma (“City”) are discussed in subsequent section of this note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide
explanations, including required disclosures of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The City
operates under a charter with a Council-Manager form of govemment.

A

Reporting Entity
Fund Types and Major Funds

Major Governmental Funds
General Fund
Reported as the primary fund of the City. This fund is used to account for all financial resources not reported in other funds.

Debt Service Fund
Accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of principal and interest on the City's debt.

Capital Projects Fund
Accounts for the capital expenditures of the 1.75% limited purpose sales tax.

Economic Development Fund
Accounts for operations of the econemic development of the City of Elk City.

Major Proprietary Funds

Elk City Public Works Autnority

Accounts for the operating activities of the water, sewer, and sanitation utilities of the City. The City Council serves as the
trustees of the Authority. The Elk City Public Works Authority was established in June 1981 and amended in March 1998,

Elk City Airport Authority
Accounts for the operating activities of the Elk City Municipal Airpert. The City Council serves as the frustees of the Afrport

Authority established in July 1879.

Elk City Industrial Authority
Created in March 1967 to promote the development of industry within the City. The Industrial Authority includes the operations

of the rock yard.

Fiductary Component Units {reported in fiduciary financial statements)
District 2 Drug Task Force Trust
Established to account for the operations of the drug task foree of the District

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements

The govemment-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and statement of activities. These statements
report financial information for the City as a whole. The statements distinguish governmental activities, generally supported by
taxes and City general revenues, from business-type activities, generally financed in whole or in part with fees charged to
external customers. [ndividual funds are not displayed by the statements.

The statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the
functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize mere than
one fund to caplure the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues
include: (1) charges for services with usage fees, fines and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the City's services; (2)
operating granis and contributions which finance annual operating activiies; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund
the acquisition, construction, or rehabilifation of capital assets. Taxes and other revenues sources nat properly included with
program revenues are reporied as general revenues,

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. Major individual governmenial ang
enterprise funds are reported in separate columns with compasite columns for non-major funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States (U.S. GAAF). The City's reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)}
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CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

proncuncements and applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles
Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements. The City's
reporting entity does not apply FASB pronouncements or APB opinions issued after November 30, 1989.

The government-wide statements report using the economic resources measurements focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Reimbursements are reported as reductions to expenses. Proprietary financial statements and financial
statlements of the City's companent units also report using the same focus and basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when eamed and expenses are recorded when a ability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

District 2 Drug Task Force funds recognize revenue in the period the assets are seized. The Agency Fund s custodial in
nature and does not measure results of operations.

Governmental fund financial statements are reperted using current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are hoth measurable and available. Measurable means
knowing or being able o reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafier to pay current liabilities. The City considered revenues to be available if they are collecied within 60 days of the end
of the fiscal year, Expenses are recorded when the related fund fability is incurred,

Major revenue sources susceptible 1o accrual include: sales and use taxes and intergovernmental revenues. In general, other
revenues are recognized when cash is received.

Operating income reperted in the proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the primary,
continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales or
services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of provided goods or services and include administrative expenses and
depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating in the financial statements.

. Budget Policy and Practice
Budget Approval

The City Manager submits an annual budget ta the City Commission in accordance with the Oklahoma Municipal Budgst Act.
The budget is presented to the Commission for review, and public hearings are held to address priarities and the allocation of
resources. In Junie, the Comrnission adopts the annual fiscal year budgets for City's operating funds. Budget amendments or
supplements may be made during the year when unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues and
appropriations. Budget amendments are recommended by the GCity Manager and must be approved by the Commission.
Public trusts submit budgets and other planning documents 1o their respective governing bodies. Other funds budgeted on a
project-length basis are also subjected to the Commission review and approval process.

Basis of Budgeting

Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line itemn basis. Revenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures
are budgeted by depariment and object class as foltows: personal services, other services and charges, supplies, capital
outlay, transfers, and debt service. The legal level of contrel is by depariment within a fund. Expenditures may not exceed
appropriations at this level, Within these contro! levels, management may transfer appropriations without Commission
approval. Revisions to the budget were made throughout the year.

The budgets for aperating funds and proprietary funds are prepared on the cash basis. Revenues are budgeted in the year
they are expected to be received. Expenses are budgeted in the year they are expecled to be paid.

Noncompliance
The City was notin compliance with legal provisions as fallows:

The City is in viclation of the Muricipal Budget Act by exceeding deparimental budgeted appropriations in the General Fund.
Detail of depariments which exceeded appropriations can be found in the required supplemental information section of this
report.

The City is in violation of the Municipal Budget Act by failing to provide a budget for all funds. During fiscal year ending 2011,
the City failed to provide budgets for any other funds except the General Fund while the provisions of the Municipal Budget Act
requlire budgets for all furds except public trusts.

Management's Response

The City staff have reviewed the Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act and communicated the requirements there within to all
involved paries. This education included ihe establishment of clear roles and responsibilities in the budget process and
reporting mechanisms to assist in monitoring compliance. Furthermoere, the City has made personnel changes in key areas to
ensure the Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act is followed. One such change includes the hiring of external financial consultants,
knowledgeable in Government Accounting Standards and the Municipa) Budget Act to oversee the budget operations of the
City. The City Commission is reviewing monthly budget fo actual reports detailing current status compared to approved
budgeted amounts. Budget amendments are addressed on a quarterly basis, at a minimurn.
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D. Policies Related to Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity

Cash and Investments

For the purposes of the combined balance sheet and the statement of cash flows, "cash and cash equivalents” includes all
demand deposits, savings accounts and ceriificates of deposits or short-term investments {including restricted assets) with an
original maturity of three months or less. Deposits are stated at cost.

Investments are reported at fair value which is determined using market prices. Short-term investments are reported at cost,
which approximates fair value.

Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption stated on a first-in, first-out basis. They are reported at cost
and recorded as an expense at the time the item is used. Governmental inventory consists of maintenance supplies for the
museum. Business-fype inventory includes rock, maintenance parts, and repair supplies.

Accounts Receivable

Significant receivables for governmental activities include sales and use tax receivables and ambulance receivables. Business-
type receivables consist mainly of amount due from customers primarily for rock sales and utility services. These receivables
are due within one year. Certain enterprise funds report accounts receivable net of an afiowance for uncollectible accounts.
The allowance amount is esimated using accounis receivable past due more than 60 to 90 days. At June 30, 2011, the City
has estimated an allowance of $182,479.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include assels legally restricted for capital projects and special revenue funds funded through sales tax or
charges for services. Restricted assets and liabilities current in natures are reported with current assets and current liabilties in
the financial statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then
unrestricted resources as needed.

Interfunid Balances

Generally, outstanding balances between funds reported and due tofdue from other funds include outstanding charges by one
fund to ancther for services or goads ar miscellanequs receivables/payables between funds. Activily between funds that is
representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year and are described as due toldue
from other furnds.

Capital Assets, Depreciation, and Amortization

They City's property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with usefut lives of more than one year are stated at historical cost
and reported in the government-wide financial stalements. Proprietary capita! assets are also reported in their respective fund
financial statements. Donated assets are stated at fair value on the date donated. The City generally capitalized assets with
cost of $4,000 or more as purchase and construction outiay cccur.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend useful lives are not
capilalized. Capital assels are depreciated using the straight-line methad. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and
applicable accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulling gain or loss is recorded in

operations.
«  Buildings 40 years
«  Machinery, furniture & equipment 5-10 years
«  Infrastructure 40 years

Costs incurred during construction of long-lived assets are recorded as construction in progress and are not depreciated until
placad in service.

Compensated Absences

Full -fime employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums depending on tenure with
the City. Sick leave accrues o full-time employees to specified maximums. Generally, after one year of services,
employees are entitled to all of their sick leave balance and all accrued vacation leave upon termination. The estimated
liabilities include required selary-related payments. Compensated absences are reported as accrued current liabilities in
the government-wide and proprietary financial statemenis.  Governmental funds report only matured compensated
absences payable o currently terminating employees.
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Long-Tenn Debt

In the government-wide, proprietary, and component unit financial statements, outstanding debt is reported as a liability.
Fund Equity

Eund Balance

The govemmentat fund financial statements report reserved fund balance for amounts not avaitable for appropriation or fegally
resfricted for specified purposes beyond the resfricticns applicable %o the fund.

Net Asseis

Both proprietary fund financial statements and government-wide financial statements report net assets. Amounts invested in
capital assets, net of related debt and legally restricted amounts are separated from unrestricted neat assets.

Invested In capital assets, net of related debt

The amount restricted consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulaied depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, morigages, notes, or other bamowings that are aftributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted net assets

Amounts reported as restricted consist of net assets with censtraints placed on their use efther by (1) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisicns or
enabling legislation.

Governmental Fund Balances

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definifions {GASB 54). This Staterment defines the different types of fund balances that &
governmental entity must use for financial reperting purposes.

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categoeries list below.

Nonspendable
Fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale
(unless the proceeds are restricted, committed, or assigned),

Restricted
Fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution,
exlemal resource providers, or through enabling legislation,

Committed

Fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal
action of the City Commission, the City's highest level of decision-making authority,

Assigned

Fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria
to be classified as restricted or committed, and

Unassigned

Fund balance is the residual ¢lassification for the government's general fund and includes all spendable amounts not
contained in the other classifications

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires managemeni to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reporting amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Certain reclasaiications have bsen mada to prior period balances in crder to conform to the current period's presentation.

Policies Related to Revenues and Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for Services

Program revenues reported with governmental activities include charges for services like permits and fees, park charges, and
fines and forfeitures. Business-type activity charges for services include all operating income of proprietary funds.
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Grants and Contributions
Governmental grants and contributions primarily consist of granis from Federal and state agencies. The rature of the grant
determines if it is reported as operating or capital program revenues.

Business-type aclivity grants and contributions include donations from others as well as grants from Federal and state
agencies.

General Revenues
General revenues reported with governmentail activities include tax revenues and unrestricted investment income.

Sales Tax

The City levied a 4% sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission
and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission. A portion of the sales tax received is restricted
as to use. The unrestricted portion (1.25%) is recorded as sales tax revenue within the General Fund; 1.75% is restricted and
recorded as sales tax revenue in the Capital Improvement fund, and 1% is restricted for debt payments in the Industrial
Authority.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses
The City allocates indirect expenses primarily comprised of central governmental services {o operating functions and programs

benefiting from those services. Central services include overall City management, accounting, financial reporting, payroll, and
accounts payable. Allocations are charged to programs based on total expenses of the department.

{2) ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

A. Assets

Deposits and Investments

Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be retumned or the

City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. The City's deposits are secured by
collateral values at market or par, whichever is lower, less the amount covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Deposited funds may be invested in certificates of deposit in institutions with an established record of
fiscal health and service.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Investments
held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate changes.

Investments

The Gty invests primarily in certificates of deposit. Investment securities are expesed to various risks such as interest rate
risk and credit risk.
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Primary Government

Fair Value/ Average Weighted
Carrying Credit Quality/ Average Days to
Types of Investments Amount Cost Ratings (1) Maturity (2)
Primary government
INVESTMENTS:
Cerlificates of deposit 3 5,683,000 $ 5,693,000 NIA 19
Tolal investments 5,693,000 5,693,000
Total primary government investments  $ 5,693,000 $ 5,693,000
RECONCILATION TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activitles Total
Investments, unrestricted $ 1,834,000 3 1,507,000 5 3,341,000
Investments, restricted 2,352,000 - 2,352,000
Total investments 3 4,186,000 $ 1,507,000 3 5,693,000

{1) Ratings are provided where applicable lo indicate associated Credit Risk. N/A indicates not applicable.

(2) Interest rate risk is estimated using either duration or weighted average days to maturity depending on the respective policy.

Restricted Assets
Cash Investments Total
Governmental Activities
Debt service $ 1,103,461 3 - 3 1,103,461
Capital projects 2,241,489 - 2,241,489
Economic development 724,935 2,000,000 2,724,935
Street & alley 83,704 100,000 183,704
Cemetery 39,811 60,000 99,811
Library 99,929 60,000 159,929
Carousel maintenance 85,127 100,000 185,127
Museum 262,062 25,000 287,062
Fire department 45,883 7,000 52,883
Palice department 36,072 - 36,072
Airport 289,626 - 289,826
Total Govermmental Activities 5,012,099 2,352,000 7,364,009
Business-type Activities
Economic development 1,000,352 - 1,000,352
Total Business-type Activities 1,000,352 - 1,000,352
Total Primary Government $ 6,012,451 3 2,352,000 $ 8,364,451

Receivables and Uncollectable Amounts

Due from other govemments

Governmental activities report sales taxes receivable and grant receivable amounts as due from other governments. Sales
tax receivable is comprised of amounts received after year-end for current year taxes on sales. Balances are considered

fully collectible.

Accounts Receivable

Governmental activities report ambulance patient receivables totaling $305,607, net of allowance of $156,133.
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Proprietary activities report accounts receivable of $1,230,021 comprised of amounts due from rock yard vendors and
citizens for utility services provided. The City has recorded an allowance of $182,479 based upon historical management
knowledge and experience.

Note Receivalle

The Elk City Industria! Authority entered into a note receivable with Superior Fabrication, Ing. for the purpose of leasing a
building valued at $3,000,000, of which $2,319,574 is still due to the city as of June 30, 2011. The note has a variable
interest rate that was 5.25% at June 30, 2011. The terms of the note call for 180 monthly payments of principal and interest
in the amount of $27,408, and the note matures on August 1, 2022. Superior Fabrication, Inc. has the option to purchase
the building at anytime by paying the amount owed on the offsetting foan (Note 2(B)) or exiending the agreement another
15 years after the agreement matures in 2022

Capital Assets

CCanges in Capital Assets

Primary Government

Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2010 Additions Oeletions June 30, 2011
Governmental Aclivies
Land $ 3,193,903 $ 143,944 $ 174,757 $ 3,163,050
Buildings & structures 15,198,808 707,040 - 15,905,848
Machinery, fumiture, & equipment 16,743,115 562,405 521,907 16,783,613
Infrastructure & improvements 29,755,775 47,164 - 29,802,939
Total 64,891,601 1,460,553 696,704 65,655,450
Less accumulated depreciation 28,991,992 2,061,880 310,141 30,743,731
Governmental fixed assets, net $ 35,809,609 $ (601,327) § (386,563) $ 34,911,719
Business-type Activies
Land $ 270,000 $ 170,000 $ - 3 440,000
Buildings & structures 34,168,710 - - 34,168,710
Machinery, fumniture, & equipment 1,846,956 681,417 417,051 2,111,322
Infrastructure & improvements 12,573,756 7,693,205 - 20,266,961
Total 48,859,422 8,544,622 417,051 56,986,993
Less accumnulated depreciation 11,541,738 1,372,590 253,345 12,660,983
Business-type fixed assets, net $ 37,317,684 $ 7,172,032 % {163,70B) 5 44,326,010
Total primary government $ 73,217,293 $ 6,570,705 $ (550,269) $ 79237729
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Cepreciation E[pense
Primary Government
Governmental Activities Business(type Activities
General govemment % 310,091 Waler $ 520612
Public safety & judiciary 261,788 Customer service 11,759
Transportation 3,882 Airport 10,986
Cultural, parks & recreation 423,582 Industrial 829,233
Public service 870,613
Economic development 191,924 Total depreciation expense $ 1,372,590
Total depreciation expense m
B. Liafilities
Notes and Bonds Payable

BusinessiType Activities

Notes Payable:

The Elk City Public Works Autherity entered into a loan with the City of Sayre for a percentage of § 49,999
Oklahoma Department of Commerce loan funds. The funds were obtained for landfill improvements. The

loan is non-interest bearing and has a fina! maturity date of June 28, 2019, Principa! payments of $521

are due each month.

In fiscal year 2010, The Elk City Public Works Autherity obtained a loan original amount $8,825,000 from 6,648,981
the Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) to finance construction of a waterline. The loan has a

fixed interest rate of 3.09% plus an administrative fee of .50% per year and is payable in semi-annuyat

installments of $117,667 plus interest and administrative fees beginning September 15, 2011. The loan

is secured with the Elk City Public Works Authority’s assets and future revenues and matures March 15,

2041. As of June 30, 2010, the unfunded portion of this loan was $2,176,019,

The EX City Industrial Authority entered into a loan agreement with First National Bank & Trust for the

purpose of constructing a building for Superior Fabrication, Inc. The loan is offset with a note receivable 2,319,574
with Superior Fabrication, Inc. (Note 2{A)) which has the same payment terms as this loan. The loan is

payable in 180 monthly installments of principal and interest of $27,408 and matures on August 1, 2022

The loan has a varizble interest rate which was 5.25% on June 30, 2011. The loan can be paid of early if

Superior Fabrication, Inc. chooses to purchase the building for the remaining cost of the loan.

Conduit Debt Obligations:

The Elk City Industrial Authority entered into a loan with Deutsche Bank for the amount of $2,995,000 to 818,001
partially finance the construction of a school arena complex. This loan is secured with a 1% sales tax on

the gross receipts derived from all sales within the City approved by the citizens of Elk City during the

year ended June 30, 2004. The lcan bears interest at 4.175% and is payable in semi-annual

instaliments of principal and interest of $184,715 until the loan matures during 2013. Refer to conduit

debt further described helow,

The Elk City Industrial Authority entered into two separate loans $10,000,000 and $7,000,000 with Bank 12,910,000
of America for a total of $17,000,000 to finance the construction of a school arena complex. Both lans

are secured with a 1% sales tax on the gross receipts derived from all sales within the City approved by

the citizens of Elk City during the year ended June 30, 2004. The loans carry a variable interest rate

calculated at 65% of 6-month LIBOR plus 150 basis points. The Authority has entered in to an interest

rate swap agreement that effectively establishes a fixed rate for each loan 5.43% and 5.4%, respectively.

The loais are payable it annual istallinenls ranging Tom $709,000-$1,338,000 plus interest each year

until the loans mature in 2023. Refer to conduit debt further described below.

5 22746555
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Conduit Celt

The Elk City Industrial Authority issued three limited obligations to finance the construction of a school arena complex. This
facility is owned by the Industrial Authority and leased by Elk City Public Schools and reported as an Industrial Autharity
asset. The debt is a limited obligation of the Industrial Authority and payable only from the dedicated 1 cent sales tax. This
does not constitute a pledge of faith and the Authority has no obligation for the debt beyond the dedicated sales tax. The
debt is reported under the Industrial Authority. At June 30, 2011, the Industrial Authority reported $13,728,001 of
outstanding conduit debt.

CCanges in Long(Term Celt

Balance at Amount Amount Balance at Cue OitCin
Type of Delt July 1, 2010 Issued Retired June 30, 2011 One Year
Businessitype activitiesD
Public Works Authority
City of Sayre ] 56,249 $ - 3 6,250 3 49,999 $ 6,250
- OWRB 3,755,980 2,893,001 - 6,648,981 235,334
Total Public Works Authority 3,812,229 2,893,001 6,250 6,698,980 241,584
Industrial Authority
First National Bank 2,520,242 - 200,668 2,319,574 193,715
Conduit Debt 14,726,065 - 998,064 13,728,001 1,047,777
Total Industrial Authority 17,246,307 - 1,198,732 16,047,575 1,241,492
Total Cusinessitype deCt $ 21,058,536 T 2,893,001 $ 1,204,982 § 22,746,555 $ 1,483,076
Annual e[t Service ReCuirements
Year Ending
June 30 Public Works Authority Industrial Authority Conduit Debt
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 241,584 $ 238,695 $ 193715 § 107,771 $ 1,047777 $ 710,871
2013 241,584 230,247 222,592 108,302 1,101,089 657,112
2014 241,584 221,798 234,563 94,331 915,155 601,749
2015 241,584 213,350 247,179 81,715 831,000 555,233
2016 241,584 204,901 260,473 68,422 877,000 508,966
2017-2021 1,195,246 897,779 1,161,052 194,175 5,149,000 1,758,127
2022-2026 1,176,670 686,567 - - 3,807,000 316,638
2027-2031 1,176,670 475,354 - - - -
2032-2036 1,176,670 291,625 - - - -
2037-2041 765,804 31,758 - - - -
Totals $ 6,698,980 $ 3,492,074 $ 2319574 $ 652716 § 13,728,001 $ 5,108,696
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C. Interfund Balances

Transfer In Transfer Qut

GOCERNMENTAL ACTICITIES
GENERAL FUND
NON-MAJOR FUNDS $ 370,336 8 -
CAPITAL PROJECTS 468,846 -
INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY - 2,925,234
CAPITAL PROJECTS
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY - 6,539,058
ECNOMIC DEVELOPMENT - 222,553
GENERAL FUND - 468,846
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CAPITAL PROJECTS 222,553 -
NON-MAJOR FUNDS
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY - 14,289
GENERAL FUND - 370,336
ELK CITY ELECTRIC 229,490
BUSINESSLTYPE ACTICITES
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY
CAPITAL PROJECTS 6,539,058 -
NON-MAJOR FUNDS 16,848 2,559
AIRPORT AUTHORITY 811 -
ELK CITY ONLINE 15,500 -
ELK CITY ELECTRIC 70,122 -
INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY 50,000 -
AIRPORT AUTHORITY
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY - 811
INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY
GENERAL FUND 2,925,234 -
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY - 50,000
ELK CITY ONLINE
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY - 15,500
ELK CITY ELECTRIC
PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY - 70,122
NON-MAJOR FUNDS 229,490
3 10,908,798 3 10,808,793

{3) FUNDONET ASSETS AN FUND BALANCE
Prior Period Adjustment
Classification of Funds
The City of Elk City Public Facilities Funds was reported as a Trust Fund in the June 30, 2610. Management has elected fo report
the fund as a special revenue fund in governmental activities at June 30, 2011. The Limited Purpose Sales Tax established to fund
the construction of the BAR-S facility and the schocl arena was reported as a Trust Fund in the June 30, 2010. The funds are
reported as part of the Industrial Authority at June 30, 2011.

(4} RECENUES AND ECPENSES

Interfund Transfers
Refer to Note (2)C. Interfund Balances
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PENSION ANO POST(EMPLOYMENT PLANS

The City participates in three employee pension systems as follows:

Name of Plan Type of Plan

The Hartford Deferred Comp 457 Deferred Compensation Plan

Oklahoma Police Pensicn and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer — Defined Benefit Plan

Oklahoma Firefighter Pension and Retirement
Fund

Cost Sharing Multiple Employer — Defined Benefit Plan

Drlaloma Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Oescription

Substantially all of the City's full ime employees, with the exception of police officers and firefighters, participate in a deferred
contribution plan administered by The Hartford. The plan is funded through contributions as elected by the City Commission.
Participants may contribute a portion of their salary to the plan under Interal Revenue Ceode section 457. The City contributes
1o the plan using a sliding scale dependent upon longevity.

The fair value of the plan assets for the City is $2,163,643 as of June 30, 2011. For the year ended June 30, 2011, total
contributions to the plan were $215,452.

B. Qflaloma Police and Firefiol ter’s Pension and Retirement Systems

Plan Cescription

The City participates in two statewide, cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plans on behalf of police officers and
firedfighters. The table below is a summary of eligibility factors contribution methods, and benefit provisions.

These two systems are administered by agencies of the State of Oklahoma and funded by contributions from participants,
employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations as necessary.

Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing contribution
obligations and benefits

Plan member's contribution rate
City's confribution rate

Pericd reguired to vest

Benefits and eligibility for
distribution (full ime)

Benefits and eligibility for

distribution {volunteer)

Deferred retirement opticn

Annual Required Contribulions

Provision for:

Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension and
Retirement System

Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System

All full-time or voluntary firefighters of
a padicipating municipality hired
before age 45.

State Statute

8% of covered payroll
13% per year, per firefighter

10 years

20 years credited service, 2 1/2% of
final average salary multiplied by the
years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered; if
vesied, at or after age 50, or after 10
but before 20 years of credited
service, with reduced benefits.

20 years credited service equal to
$5.46 per month per year of service,
with a maximum of 30 years
considered.

Yes, 20 years credited service with
continued service for 30 or more
years.

34

All full-ime officers employed by a
pariicipating municipality; not less than
21 years of age or more than 45 years
of age when hired

State Statute

8% of covered payroll
13% of covered payroll

10 years

20 years crediled service, 2 1/2% of
final average salary multiplied by the
years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered; if
vested, at or after age 50, or after 10
buf before 20 years of credited
service, with reduced benefits.

NA

Yes, 20 years credited service with
option to participate in deferred option
plan for a maximum of 5 years
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Cost of living adjustment Yes, if vested by 5/83 Yes

Death {duty, nen-cuty, post Yes Yes
retirementy

Disability {duty, non-duty) Yes Yes

Cost of living allowances Yes Yes

Confributions are required by Oklahoma State Statue. Trend information showing the progress of the systems in accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the annual financial reports of the respective plans. Copies of these reports
may be obtained from the respective state retirement systems; Oklahoma Firefighter Pension and Refirement System at 4545 N.
Lincoln Blvd., Ste. 265, Oklahoma City, OK 73105 and the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retiremnent System 1001 N.W. 63" Street,
Suite 305, Oklahcma City, OK 7316-7335.

(6)

A,

C.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Care

State and federal laws and regulations require the City of Elk City to place a final cover on landfill sites when it stops accepting
waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure on the current
landfill. Although closure and post-closure care costs will be paid only near or afier the date the landfill stops accepting waste
as a liability based on landfill capacity used as of June 30, 2011. The landfill, which is currently in use, was estimated to have
used ninety-seven percent of its capacity as of June 30, 2017 and has approximately 2 years of capacity remaining.
Engineering reperts estimate the total closure and postclosure costs of the cell currently being used 1o be $1,327,390.

Ninety-seven percent of that amount or $1,248,061 has been recorded as a liability in long-term debt. These amounts are only
estimates based on current circumstances and may change due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.

Litigation

The City is a parly to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental operations. The tinancial
statements do not include accrual or provisions for loss contingencies that may result from these proceedings. While the
ouicome of the above noted proceedings cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage maintained by the City and the
State statue relating to judgments, the City feels that any seitlement or judgment not cavered by insurance would not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

Grant Program Involvement

In the normal course of operations, the City participates in various federal or state grant/lozn programs from year to year. The
grantfoan programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the purpose of which is
to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan. Any liabilily for reimbursement, which may arise as a
result of these audits, cannot be reasonably determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be
material.
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Clty of Eli City, OCfaloma
Comrining Balance SCeet
NonfMajor Govemnmental Funds {continued)

June 30, 2011
Police Fire Cemetery
Street 0 Improvement Clvil Special Special Coarpus
Alley Fund Fund Cefense Revenue Revenug Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 83704 8 42982 8 8775 § /072§ 45,883 25,723
Investments 100,000 15,000 2,000 - 7,000 60,000

Due frem other governments - - - - - -

Inventory - - - - - -
Total assets $5 183704 S 57982 S 8775 § 6072 S 52,863 85,723

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3 7329 8§ 3944 8 - ] - 3 8,401 -

Total liabilities 7,328 3.944 - - 8.401 -
FUNI BALANCES

Nonspendable - - - - - -
Restricted 176,375 - - - - 85,723
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned - 54,038 8,775 36,072 44,482 -
Unassigned - - - - - -
Total fund balances 176,375 54,038 8,775 36,072 44,482 85,723
Total liabiliies and fund balances s 183,704 $ 57,982 5 B.775 S 36.072 5 52,883 85,723

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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City of E\JCity, OZlaComa
ComUCining Balance SCeet
NonMajor Governmental Funds {continued)

June 30, 2011
Cemetery Special Cepart of
Interest Municipal Museum Building LiCrary Carrections Revolving
Fund Court Fund Fund Fund Fund Loan Fund
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents ] 14088 & 1521 8 239519 § 99929 S 14381 § 4,069
Investments - - - 50,000 - 5,000
Due from other governments. - - - - - -
tnventory - - 13,4326 - - -

Total assets 5 14088 § 1521 S 252955 S 159929 % 14381 8 9,069

LIABILITES

Accounts payable 3 - 5 1,521 $ 5758 % 4133 S 1108 § -

Total liabilities - 1,521 5,759 5,133 1.108 N

FUNG BALANCES

Nonspendable - - 13,436 . - -
Restricted - - - - - -
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned - - 233,760 155,796 13,273 9,069
Unassigned 14,088 - - - - -

Total fund balances 14.088 - 247,186 155,796 13.273 9.069

Tota! liabilities and fund balances $ 14088 S 1,521 $ 252956 & 150829 8 14381 3§ 9,069

See accompanying notes fo the financial stataments 37



City of EIO City, OllaComa
ComCining Balance SCeet
Non'Major Governmental Funds {continued)

June 30, 2011
Juvenile
Crime Police Alrport Rural
Prevention Range Grants Grant Gang
Fund Fund Management Fund Initiative Enforcement
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,825 $ 1,986 3 19 § 2898626 $ 947 $ 5
Investrents - - - - -
Due from other governments - - - 42,149 -
Inventory - - - - -
Total assets $ 11.825 s 1.986 3 19 S 3BT s 947 [ 5
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - 3 - § - $ 2023 S
Teta! liabilities - - - - 2,023 -
FUNDO BALANCES
Noenspendable - - - - - -
Restricted 11,825 - - 33,775 - -
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned - 1,986 19 - - 5
Unassigned - - - - (1,076) -
Total fund balances 11,825 1,986 18 331,775 (1,078) ]
Total iabjlities and fund balances 5 11,825 5 1,988 E] 19 § 331775 s 947 5 S
See accompanying notes 16 the financial statements as




City of EIDClty, OClacoma
Com-ining Balance $Cest
Non:Major Governmental Funds [continued)

June 30, 2011
Museum Paving GAP
Carousel Erririt Speclal Spaecial ‘ToTacco
Maintenance Fund Ravenua Revenue Grant Toys for Kids
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents s 85127 8 22543 8 05 S8 62358 5 29774 % 3,305

Investments 100,000 25,000 - - - -

Due from other governments - - - - - -

Inventary - - - - - -
Total assets § 185127 & 47,543 § 05§ 62358 § 28774 § 3,306

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ - S 4200 8§ - 5 - 5 6607 8 -

Total liabilities - 4,200 - - 6,607 -
FUNZ BALANCES

Nonspendable - - - - - : -
Restricted - - 105 - 23167 -
Committed - - - - - -
Assigned 165,127 43343 - 62,358 - 3,306
Unassigned - - - . - -
Total fune balances 185,127 43.343 105 62,358 23,187 3,305
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 185127 % 47543 § 105 S 62358 S 28774 5 3,305

Ser accompanying notes to the financial statements a9



Clty of EI0City, OrlaComa
Com{lining Balance STeet
Non'Major Governmental Funds {continued)
June 30, 2011

Total
123 Purilc Hotel TaD Non'Ma]or
AmZulance Landfill Clearing Reimtursement Facilities Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § 17884 § 450315 & 53465 & 4,575 14931 § 187,352 § 1,850,588
Investments - - - - 41,000 300,000 515,000
Due from other govemments - - - - - - 42,149
Inventory - - - - - - 13,4386
Total assets 3 17884 & 450,315 S 53465 8§ 4,575 55931 8§ 287152 § 2421173
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - 3 - $ - - L] - S 45,025
Totat liabilities - - - - - - 45,025
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - - - - - - 13,436
Restricted - . - - - - 628,970
Committed - 450,315 - - 665,931 287,152 793,398
Assigned 17,884 - - 4,575 - - 873,887
Unassigned - - 53,465 - - - 66,477
Total fund balances 17.884 450.315 53,465 4,575 55931 287,152 2,376,148
Total liabilities and fund batances $ 17884 5§ 45315 § 53,465 8§ 4,575 5931 § 287152 § 2421173
See accompanying notes ta the financial statements a0



City of EIJCity, O faComa
ComZTining Statement of Revenues, ECpenditures, and CCanges in Fund Balances
NonMajor Governmenta) Funds
June 30, 2011

Police Fire Cemetery
Street D Improvement Civil Speclal Speclal Corpus
Altuy Fund Furd Cefense Revenue Revenue Fuad

BETENUES

Intergovernmenta! revenue 3 26,2650 $ - H - H + 5 - 5 .
Charges lor servicas - - - - - 2716
Finas & forfintures + - - - - -
Ronital incama - -
Qther income 7 15,640 - 5911 35,560 -
Donations - -

Interestincome 1.307 222 34 337 492 -
Total revenues Sr.514 15.862 534 7,248 37,052 2718

ETFEN_ITURES
General government
Gennral gavammant * 21.384 - - - -

Total general govemment p 21,384 - - - -

Pubiz safety and judiciacy:
Polica - - - 571 - -
Fira - - - - 20,080 -
Ambulancs - - - - -

Total public satety and judiciary - - - 571 20,090 -

Transportation:
Street 23,426 - - - - -

Total vansportation 83406 - - - - =

Cultural, parks and recraation:
Musuem - - - - - -
Library . - - - N -

Total cuttural, parks and recreation L3 - - - - -

Public Sarvice;
Langfill - - - - - -

Total public sarvices 5 N - M 5 5

Econcmic Development:
Economic develspment - - - - - -

Total scanomic development - - - - N p

Capital outtay

Tota! sxpenditurss 82,426 21,384 - 51 31.4H -

Excass [daficiancy) of revenves over
expenditures. 14,148 15,522} 534 5577 5581 2718

DTHER FINANCING 30URCES (iISES]
Transters Inf{out) - 420 - - . -

Total cther financing sources and uses - (427) - 5 - =

Net change in fund balances 14,148 (5.949) 534 6577 5581 2718

Fund balances - beginning 162,227 59,867 8241 29,395 38,901 83,007

Fund balances - ending $ 176.375 3 54038 § B.775 5 26,072 3 44482 § 85729

Sew acoompanying notes to the financial statements 41



City of EIOCity, 0Jacoma

Comdining Staterment of Revenues, ECpenditures, and CCanges in Fund Balances

NonMajor Governmental Funds

June 30,2011

RETENUES
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for senvices
Fires & forfieturea
Rental incuma
Cther income:
Donations:
Inerest incama
Tatal tevenues
ECPEN-ITURES
General government
General gavemment
Total general gavernment
Pubic safaty and judicary:
Police
Fire
Ambulance
Tatal public sataty and judiciary
Transportation:
Street
Total transpertation
Cultural, parks and recreation:
Musuem
Ubrary
Total cuttural, paries and recssation
Public Sarvica:
Landfil
Total public services
Economic Dovelopment
Econemic development
Total scanamic deveiopmant
Capital outlay
Tota! expenditures
Excess (deficinncy) of ravenves. over
expenditures
QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES)
Transfers inffout)
Total other financing sources and uses.

Netchange in lund balarces
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - snding

Sna accompanying nates to the finandal stalements

Cemetery Speclal Cepart of
Interest Munlcipal Mussum Uorary Corrections Revolving
Fund Court Fund Bullding Fund Fuind Fund Loan Fund
$ - $ - - $ 12,132 L - H -
- - Buss4 - - -
- - 4530 - - .
- . - 2.223 23,892 -
- - 2614 - - -
rird - 2293 1.769 - 74
a7 - §6.931 17124 23892 74
. . - - 10,850 -
- - . - 30.850 b
- - 55,074 - - -
- - - 10,132 hd hd
- - 55.014 10,132 - -«
- - 55014 10,132 10,850 =
Fird - 44.917 5,992 12,642 kAl
. . {9551 - - -
- - (955} - - -
797 - 41962 5992 12,862 ! il
1323 - 20324 148,804 43 8.885
3 14,088 ° 5 - 13 247,186 5 155,786 $ 13,273 3 2,058
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City of EI0City, OClaComa

ComTining Statement of Revenues, ECpenditures, and CCanges in Fund Balances

NonMajor Gevernmental Funds

June 30, 2011

RETENUES
Intergavermmental revenue
Charges fer services
Fines & forfietures
Rental incoma
Qther incame
Danations
Interest incoma
Total ravenues.
E“PENZITURES
General government:
General govarmment
Total general government
Puble salety and judidary,
Polico
Fire.
Ambaudance
Total public safety and judiciary
Transportation:
Street
Total transportation
Culwral, parks and recteation:
Musuem
Library
Total eultural, parks and

Juvenlie
Crime Pallce:
Prevention Range
Fund Fund

Grants

Alrport
Grant
Fund

5228 -

7358 -

Rural
Gang

Inltiative

18,843

Lecal Lad

Enforcement

12587 -

Public Service:
Landfill
Total public services
Economic Developmant:
Econamic development
Total econamic development
Capital outiay
Total expenditures
Excess (daficiancy) of ravenues cver
expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USEB]
Transtars indjout)
Tatal other financing sources and uses

Netchangs in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Ses accompanying notes 1o th financial stalements

21,271

{4.428)

1250

1.250

1,262} 1,986

333,458

2m

{3,178)

2,402

3 11,825 § 1885

3 331,775
————
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City of EIDCity, OllaComa

ComIining Statement of Revenues, ECpenditures, and Cranges in Fund Balances

NenMajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2011

RE_ENUES
Intergovammentat revenue
Charges far services
Fines & forfieturas
Rental incoma
Cther incama
Donations
Interest income
Tolal ravenues.
E~PEN-ITURES
General gavernment
General gavernmant
Total general government
Pubic safety and judiciany:
Polica
Fira
Ambulance
Total public xafaty and judiciary
Transportation:
Strest
Tota! transporation
Cultural, parks and recreation:
Musuem
Library
Total cultural, parks and racreation
Public Setvice:
Landfill
Total public services
Economic Devatopmant
Economig development
Tatal economic davalspment
Capita! outlay
Total expenditures
Extess (deficiancy) of rvenues aver
expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {LUSES)
Trarnsiars indout)
Total other financing saurces and uses

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Ses accompanying notes 10 the finandial statements:

Carcusel

Miseumn
ETIat
Fund

Paving [t
Sgeclal Speclal
Reveaue Revenue

ToTacco
Grant

Toys for Klds

H - $ - 5

151,323

8

-

151,421

142,819

B.548

4.283

142,818

8.283

142819

8.602

(1.737)

- 8.328)

- (8,328

2335

182768

12.062

30.281

- (7.625)

105 69,993

8,802

14,585

(1,737)

Su42

185.127

43,343

$ 105 5 62,358 5
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City of EINCity, OaComa
ComUining Statement of Revenues, E_penditures, and Clanges in Fund Balances
NonMajor Governmental Funds
June 3, 2011

Total
1227 Putlle Hotel Tad NonMajor
AmZutance Landfill Clearing Relm_ursement Facliities Fund Funds
RE'ENUES
Intargovernmantal revenue 5 - 3 - § - 5 - H - 3 - $ 590,131
Charges for sonvces 353,092 - - - - - 4B, 05
Fines & forfietures - - - - - - 5229
Remtal income - . - - - - 4,530
Othar incoms 1,579 128012 - 20 - 488,300 722,302
Donations - - - - . - 42,556
Intetest incoms 102 2,502 1,152 5 678 7452 24.043
Total mvenues 364.773 130,821 1,152 F [5E] 596752 1.851.096
E-PENTITURES
General government
General govemment . - - - - - 172,486
Tetal general government - - - - - - 172,486
Pubic safety and judiciary:
Palica - - - - - - 32,692
Firn. - - - - - - 20,080
Ambulancs 538,715 - - - - - S538.719
Total public sataty and judiciary 539,719 - - - - - 551,501
Transportation:
Street - - - - - - 83.426
Total franspertation - - - - - - £3426
Cultural, parks snd recreation:
Musuem - - - - - - 56,117
Library . - - - - - 10,132
Total cuttural, parks and recsmation + - - - - - 56,448
Public Satvive:
Landfill - 7074 - - - - 7,074
Total public services - 7.074 - - - - 1,074
Ecanomic Develcpmant:
Econamic development - - - - - 375000 375,000
Totsl econamic development - - - - - 375,000 375,000
Capita! outlay 27,793 - - N - - 57,115
Tatal expenditures 566,452 7.074 - - - 375,000 1,353,060
Excess (daficioncy) of mvenues over
expenditires (201,679) 123,747 1,152 28 678 121.752 498,046
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {IISES]
Transfers inf{cut) 80,700 145.988 - 5 + (374.514) 155.135)
Tota! other financing sources and uses 80,700 146.988 - 51 - 3r4.814) 1455,135)
Het change infund balances {120.579) 270,725 1162 w 79 [R53,162) 2.0
Fund balances - beginning 128,883 175,580 52313 4,408 55,252 540214 203,237
Fund balancas - ending H 47.884 5 450,355 5 53,455 3 4,575 § . 5581 3 287,152 5 22376148

$ee accompanying notes to the financial statements 45



City of EID City, OClaComa
ComCining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Agency Funds
June 30, 2011

U ater Municipal Toftal
Meter Court Agency
Ceposit Fund Bond Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 91,650 3 1,762 $ 93,412
Cash and investments, restricted 96,000 - 96,000
Due from other governments 2,560 - 2,560
Total assets $ 190,210 $ 1,762 $ 191,972
LIABILITIES

Bonds and deposits subject to refund $ 190,210  $ 1,762 3 191,972
Total liabilities 3 190,210 $ 1,762 $ 191,972

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 46



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal Grantor/Pass Through
Grantox/Program or Cluster Title

CITY OF ELK CITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal
CFDA Numbex

Pass Thru Entity
Identifying
Number

Faderal
Expenditures

0.5, Department of Justice
Direct Program;
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Program

0.5, Ropartment of Transportation
Direct Program:
Airport Improvement Program

U.$. Depariment of Commerce
Direct Program:
ARRA~-Economic Adjustment Assistance

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying accountants! report.
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16.607

20.106

11.307

8,160

330,416

1,387,340

$ 1,725,916
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CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TC SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE A: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule o¢f expenditures of federal awards {the Schedule}
includes the federal grant activity of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma undex
pregrams of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the reguirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma, it is not intended to and dces
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of
the City of Elk City, Oklahoma.

NOTE B: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis
of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian
Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable
or are limited as to reimburserent.

(2) Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.
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CITY OF ELK CITY, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section I-Summary of Audit Results

l. The auditor’s report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial
statements of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma.

2. One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the financial
statements is reported in the report on internal control over financial
reporting and on compliance and other matfers based on an audit of financial
statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No
material weaknesses were reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City
of Elk City, Oklahoma were disclosed during the audit.

4. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the
City of Elk City, Oklahoma expresses an ungualified opinion on all major
federal programs.

5. No audit findings required to be reported by OMB Circular A-133 for the City of
Elk City, Oklahoma were found. No prier year audit findings required to be
reported by OMB Circular A-133 were found, therefore, no corrective action plan
is required.

6. The programs tested as major programs included:

Airport Improvement Program CFDA 20.106
Economic Adjustment Assistance CFDA 11.307

7. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,0C0.

8. The City of Elk City, Oklahoma does not qualify to be a low-risk auditee.

See accompanying accountants’ report. 51




CITY OF ELK CITY, OXKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUTED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section II-Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards:

2011-01 Budget Noncompliance

Condition: Several items of noncompliance were found with respect to the
Municipal Budget Act which was first effective for the City during the year
ended June 30, 2011. Folleowing is a list of ncncompliance items:

¢ The City failed to budget all funds as required.

¢ The City Council failed tec authorize by resclution an appropriate
representative to approved transfers within funds as required.

+ The City Council did not approve supplemental budget adjustments as
required.

¢ Expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts in 92 out of 21 departments in the
general fund.

Criteria: Procedures should be in place to ensure compliance with budget laws.

Cause: Effective budget monitoring procedures were not in place or were not
affective.

Recommendations:

s All funds except public trusts should be budgeted.

o TIf the City Council wishes to authorize a representative to approve
transfers within funds, it should do so by resclution.

* Budget amendments that increase or decrease the overall fund expenditures
should be approved by the City Council.

e Monitoring procedures should be implementation, for example monthly
reporting by the City Clerk teo the City Manager (and/or the City Manager
to the City Council.)

Response: The City staff have reviewed the Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act and
communicated the requirements there within %to all involved parties. This
education included the establishment of clear roles and responsibilities in the
budget process and reporting mechanisms to assist in monitoring compliance.
Furthermore, the City has made personnel changes in key areas to ensure the
Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act is followed. One such change includes the hiring
of external financial consultants, knowledgeable in Government Accounting
Standards and the Municipal Budget Act to oversee the budget operations of the
City. The City Commission is reviewing monthly budget to actual reports
detailing current status compared to approved budgeted amounts. Budget
amendments are addressed on a quarterly basis, at a minimum.

Section III-Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133:

None

See accompanying accountants’ report.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ﬂunter & Giﬁﬁins, ?‘ Co Amy Patrick, CPA

JLL. Gibbins, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLTANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Commissicners
City of Elk City, Oklahoma

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business~type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2011, which collectively comprise the City of Elk City, OCklahoma, basic financial
statements and have issued our report. thereon dated October 16, 2011. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to £financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Elk City, Oklahoma's
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Elk City, Oklahoma’s internal contrel over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s
internal contrel over reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reperting that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

The CPA. Never Underestimate The ‘Jaluea.®
_P.0. Box 785 » Elk City. OK 73648 » Ph: 580.225.0292 » Fax $80.225.0304
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Elk City,
Oklahoma's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Buditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as item 2011-01

City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s response to the findings identified in our audit is
deseribed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not
audit City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s response and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City
Council, others within the entity, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Elk City, Oklahoma
October 16, 2011

The CPA, Never Ungerestimate The Value@
_.P-O. Box 785 « Elk City. OK 73648 Ph: 580,225.0292 » Fax 380.225.0304
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}{unter & Giﬁgins, Ti Co Amy Patrick, CPA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS I L. Gibbins, CPA

i -
el M

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICARLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND OM INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor and City Commissicners
City of Elk City, Oklahoma

Comgliance

We have audited City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of City of Elk City, ©Oklahoma's
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Elk City,
Oklahoma's compliance based on our audit

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of BAmerica; the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Qrganizations. Those standards and OMB Circular B-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about City of Elk City, Oklahoma's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our sudit does not provide a legal determination of City of Elk City, Oklahcma’s
compliance with those requirements.

in our opinion, City of Elk City, Oklahoma, complied, in all material respects, with
the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011.

The CPA, Never Underestimate The Value.g
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Elk City, Oklahoma, is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered City of Elk City, Oklahoma‘’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program in order to determine our anditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Elk City,
Oklahcma’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal contrel over compliance exists when the design or cperation
ef a contrel over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncempliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

City of Elk City, Oklahoma's responses to the findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not
audit City of Elk City, Oklahoma’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City
Council, others within the entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

gﬁwnﬁ?n,é% gké%knan‘??éi

Elk City, Cklahoma
October 16, 2011

The GPA. Never Underestimate The Value@
PO Box 783 » Elk City, OK 73648 « Ph: 5802250292 « Fux 580.2250304




CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Hunter & Gibbins, P.C. ey Pt

1L, Gibbins, CPA

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Honorable Mayor and City Commissioners
City of Elk City, Oklahoma

State of QOklazhoma Department of Environment Quality
Qklahoma City, Oklahoma

At your request we have applied the agreed-upon procedures enumerated below tao the
accounting records of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma as of June 30, 2011, It is
understood that this report is for the purpose of submission to the State of Oklahoma
Department of Environmental Quality that financial assurance exists to insure cleosure
and post-closure cost without the use of other third party mechanisms for the City of
Elk City, Oklahoma’s landfill. This engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures was
performed in accordance with standards established by the BAmerican Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of the procedures is solely the
responsibility of the specified users of the report. Consequently, we make no
representations regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either
for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

Qur procedures and findings are as follows:

Our procedures were to test the accounting records of the City of Elk City, Oklahoma
as of June 30, 2011 to insure that the City of Elk City, Oklahcoma satisfied the
reqguirements OQAC 252:515-27-82 ({a) through (k}.

1. We determined by examining correspondence, from the State of Oklahoma
Department of Environmental Quality that the City currently has approved
closure and post-closure cost of §1,327,390.

2. We determined from the audited financial statements of the City as of June 30,
2011 that the City does not have general obligation bonds.

3. We determined from the audited tinancial statements that the Clty has not
operated at a deficit in each of the past three vyears.

4. We determined that the City’s financial statements for the year ended June 30,
2011 have been audited and an ungualified opinion issued by our firm.
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5. We determined that City satisfies each of the feollowing financial ratios based
on the most recent audited annuwal financial statement:

A. A ratio of cash plus marketable securities to total expenditures is
greater than or egual to 0.05; and

B. A ratio of annual debt service to total expenditures less than or equal
' to 0.20.

The City’s financial ratios are as follows:

a. Ratio of cash plus marketable securities teo total expenditures.
Cash plus marketable securities $22,818,642
= 1.2938
Total expenditures 517,637,353
B. Ratio of annual debt service to total expenditures.
Annual debt service . $ 1,204,982
= .0683
Total expenditures $17,637,353
6. We have determined that the Financial Statements were prepared in conformity

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and have been audited by an
independent CPA.

7. We determined that the City has no other environmental operations for which
financial assurance must be provided other than the landfill and the total
financial assurance obligations required does not exceed 43 percent of the
City’s Total Annual Revenue as reflected in the City’s June 30, 2011 financial

statements.
Total financial assurance obligation $1,327,380
43% of Totzl annual revenue
{(43% X 25,030,105) 510,762, 945
8. The c¢ity has disclosed the closure and post-closure care cost into its

comprehensive annual financial report on page 35 of the report. The disclosure
includes the nature and source of closure and post-closure care requirements,
the reported liability at the balance sheet date, the estimated total closure
and post-closure care cost remaining to be recognized, the percentage of
landfill capacity used to date and the estimated life of the landfill,.

We were not engaged to, and did not perform an audit, the objective of which would be
the expression of an opinion on the specified elements, accounts, or items.
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we performed additional
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been
reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the use of the specified users listed above and

should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken
responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes.

Elk City, Cklahoma ®
The CPA, Never Underestimate The Valye.
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